
 

 

 
North Central Public Health District 

 

“Caring For Our Communities” 
 

North Central Public Health District 
Board of Health Meeting 
 

February 14, 2017 
3:00 PM 
Deschutes Conference Room 
Wasco County Court 

 
AGENDA  -  

 
1. Minutes 

a. Approve from 1/10/17 meeting 
b. Set Next Meeting Date (3/14/2017) 

 
2. Additions to the Agenda 

 
3. Public Comment 

 
4. Unfinished Business 

a. 2017-18 Budget Update 
a. Public Members  
b. Meeting Location 
c. Process Discussion 

 
5. New Business 

a. Introduction of New Employees 
i. Nicole Bailey – EH Specialist Trainee 

b. Indoor Clean Air Act Update – Presented by Hayli Eiesland 
c. Approval of A/P Check Reports (January 2017) 
d. Contracts 

i. Columbia Gorge Health Council – Business Agreement 
ii. Columbia Gorge Health Council – Program Services Agreement 
iii. Columbia Gorge Health Council – Confidentiality Non-Disclosure Agreement 

e. Director’s Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Note: This agenda is subject to last minute changes. 
 
Meetings are ADA accessible. If special accommodations are needed please contact NCPHD in advance at (541) 506-
2626.  TDD 1-800-735-2900.  NCPHD does not discriminate against individuals with disabilities. 
 
 

**If necessary, an Executive Session may be held in accordance with: ORS 192.660 (2) (d) Labor Negotiations; ORS 
192.660 (2) (h) Legal Rights; ORS 192.660 (2) (e) Property; ORS 192.660 (2) (i) Personnel** 
 



 

 
1 

S:\Meeting Minutes & Agendas\Board of Health Meetings\Minutes\2017\BOH Meeting Minutes 1-10-17 
DRAFT.doc 

 

 
  

NORTH CENTRAL PUBLIC HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

“Caring For Our Communities” 
 

419 East Seventh Street 
The Dalles, OR 97058-2676 

541-506-2600 
www.ncphd.org 

 

North Central Public Health District 
Board of Health 

Meeting Minutes 
January 10, 2017 (3:00pm) 

 
In Attendance:  Commissioner Scott Hege – Wasco County; Fred Schubert – Wasco County  By 
Phone:  Commissioner Tom McCoy – Sherman County; Linda Thompson – Sherman County; 
Judge Steve Shaffer – Gilliam County; Michael Takagi – Gilliam County; and William Hamilton – 
Wasco County. 
 
Staff Present:  Teri Thalhofer, RN, BSN – Director NCPHD; Kathi Hall – Finance Manager NCPHD 
 
Guest(s):  Michael Smith 
 
Minutes taken by Gloria Perry 
 
Meeting called to order on January 10, 2017 at 3:05pm by Vice Chairman Fred Schubert 
 

SUMMARY OF ACTIONS TAKEN 
 
Motion by Commissioner Scott Hege, Second by Judge Steve Shaffer, to approve the minutes 
from the 11/8/2016 and 12/20/2016 board of health meetings as presented. 
 
Vote:  7-0 
Yes:  Commissioner Tom McCoy, Linda Thompson, Judge Steve Shaffer, Michael 
  Takagi, Commissioner Scott Hege, Fred Schubert and William Hamilton. 
No:  0 
Abstain: 0 
Motion carried. 

http://www.ncphd.org/


 

 
2 

S:\Meeting Minutes & Agendas\Board of Health Meetings\Minutes\2017\BOH Meeting Minutes 1-10-17 
DRAFT.doc 

 

 
Motion by Judge Steve Shaffer, Second by Commissioner Tom McCoy, to nominate 
Commissioner Scott Hege as the Chairman of NCPHD board of health. 
 
Vote:  6-0 
Yes:  Commissioner Tom McCoy, Linda Thompson, Judge Steve Shaffer, Michael 
  Takagi, Fred Schubert and William Hamilton 
No:  0 
Abstain: Commissioner Scott Hege 
Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Judge Steve Shaffer, Second by Linda Thompson, to nominate Fred Schubert as the 
Vice Chairman of the NCPHD board of health. 
 
Vote:  6-0 
Yes:  Commissioner Tom McCoy, Linda Thompson, Judge Steve Shaffer, Michael 
  Takagi, Commissioner Scott Hege and William Hamilton 
No:  0 
Abtain:  Fred Schubert 
Motion carried. 
Motion by Judge Steve Shaffer, Second by Fred Schubert, to approve the A/P Checks Issued 
reports for November and December 2016 as presented. 
 
Vote:  7-0 
Yes:  Commissioner Tom McCoy, Linda Thompson, Judge Steve Shaffer, Michael 
  Takagi, Commissioner Scott Hege, Fred Schubert and William Hamilton. 
No:  0 
Abstain: 0 
Motion carried. 
 
WELCOME AND INTRUCTIONS 
 

1. MINUTES / NEXT MEETING DATE 
a. Approval of past meeting minutes 

i. 11/8/2016 & 12/20/2016 meeting minutes were approved as presented. 
b. Set next meeting date 

i. The next Executive Committee board meeting was scheduled for 
Tuesday, February 14, 2017 at 3:00pm.  Meeting location will be at the 
North Central Public Health District office located at 419 E. 7th Street, The 
Dalles, OR. 
 

2. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 



 

 
3 

S:\Meeting Minutes & Agendas\Board of Health Meetings\Minutes\2017\BOH Meeting Minutes 1-10-17 
DRAFT.doc 

 

a. 2017-18 Budget 
b. Recognition and Thank-you Presentation 

 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT 

a. None 
 

4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Transition of NCPHD Board Leadership 

i. With Mike Smith stepping down as the chair, a new chairman of the 
board needs to be appointed. 

ii. Fred Schubert opened nominations for the Chairman of NCPHD Board of 
Health. 

1. Judge Steve Shaffer made a motion to nominate Commissioner 
Scott Hege as the Chairman of NCPHD Board of Health, this was 
seconded by Commissioner Tom McCoy. 

2. After discussion, a vote was held to appoint Commissioner Scott 
Hege as the Chairman of the NCPHD Board of Health. 

iii. Fred Schubert opened nominations for the Vice Chairman of NCPHD 
Board of Health. 

1. Michael Takagi made a motion to nominate Judge Shaffer as the 
Vice Chairman of NCPHD Board of Health.  Judge Shaffer declined 
the nomination due to his busy work schedule. 

2. Judge Shaffer made a motion to nominate Fred Schubert as the 
Vice Chairman of NCPHD Board of Health, this was seconded by 
Linda Thompson. 

3. After discussion, a vote was held to appoint Fred Schubert as the 
Vice Chairman of NCPHD Board of Health. 

5. NEW BUSINESS 
a. 2017-18 Budget 

i. Committee Members 
1. Need to clarify who the public members will be for the 17-18 

budget. 
2. Gloria Perry will email the court administrators from Sherman, 

Gilliam and Wasco Counties to confirm who the public members 
will be. 

ii. Meeting Date 
1. Kathi and Teri are in the process of meeting with program 

managers to review current budget and to discuss next year’s 
budget. 

2. Kathi will have a draft budget calendar prepared for the next 
board of health meeting. 

b. Recognition for Michael Smith 



 

 
4 

S:\Meeting Minutes & Agendas\Board of Health Meetings\Minutes\2017\BOH Meeting Minutes 1-10-17 
DRAFT.doc 

 

i. Teri presented to Michael Smith a plaque recognizing and thanking him 
for his leadership and time as NCPHD’s Chair. 

c. Review of NCPHD 2016 Annual Report 
i. Teri gave a brief overview of the report.  Some highlights were: 

1. License Facilities 
a. Conducted 51 more inspections over last year. 

2. Immunizations 
a. Provided 100 less immunizations to the community.  This 

is not a big surprise considering the decreased clinic hours 
in 2016. 

3. We received 528 reports of communicable disease vs. the 502 the 
year before.  Not all of these warranted full investigation but they 
did warrant review and evaluation. 

4. We only had 3 outbreaks vs. 11 the year before.  This is likely 
attributed to the work of the communicable disease staff working 
out in the community with organizational camps, long term care 
facilities, and community partners about how to isolate and 
contain ill clients in the community. 

5. Our home visiting staff provided 174 more home visits to 
pregnant women, children at risk of development delay and kids 
with special health care needs than they did the year before. 

6. We saw 98 less family planning clients than we did the year 
before which is pretty significant considering our hours were so 
significantly reduced, that it was only 98 clients fewer. 

7. Data that is not included in the annual report: 
a. In 2014 our teen pregnancy rate was 12.5% which is very 

close to the State rate of 12.4%. In 2015 our rate was 
20.9%.  It increased significantly while the State’s 
decreased to 11.2%.  This is something that we will be 
keeping a very close eye on. 

b. Family Planning Reproductive Health:  In 2015 NCPHD 
averted 143 unintended pregnancies (34 teen and 109 
adult in women 20+.)  In 2015, the average cost of an OHP 
delivery in the first year of infant health care was 
$16,801.00.  Nationally, approximately 40% of unintended 
pregnancies result in birth.  This means that approximately 
60 unintended births were averted among our clients, 
resulting in a tax payers savings of $1,008,060.00.  This is 
significant work.  Nationally, about 58% of unintended 
pregnancies result in abortion, that means that 
approximately 73 abortions averted among our clients. 



 

 
5 

S:\Meeting Minutes & Agendas\Board of Health Meetings\Minutes\2017\BOH Meeting Minutes 1-10-17 
DRAFT.doc 

 

c. Teri was asked to explain how NCPHD averted the 
pregnancies and she responded by providing contraceptive 
services. 

d. It was asked where these statistics were derived from.  
Teri explained it is a formula the State uses based on the 
number of women in need in the community, the number 
of people we see, the methods they use, how effective 
those numbers are, it’s a big national data chart. 

ii. Annual report will be shared with community partners via a PSA; posted 
on our website; it will also be shared with the board members of the CCO 
and the Clinical Advisory Board. 

d. 2nd Quarter Fund Balance Report – By Kathi Hall 
i. Kathi presented report to the board. 

e. Approval of A/P Check Reports (Nov & Dec 2016) 
i. Reports were approved as presented. 

f. Contracts Reviewed 
i. Teri reviewed the following contract(s) with the board: 

1. OHA Agreement 148025-9 
g. Director’s Report – By Teri Thalhofer 

i. Report presented. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 4:00pm 
 
 
_______________________________   __________________ 
Signature       Date 
 
_______________________________ 
Printed Name 
 
{Copy of 11/8/2016 and 12/20/2016 Meeting Minutes, NCPHD 2016 Annual Report, 2nd 
Quarter Fund Balance Report, A/P Check Reports for November and December 2016, OHA 
Agreement 148025-9, and January 2016 Director’s Report attached and made part of this 
record.} 

 



DRAFT BUDGET CALENDAR FOR 2017/2018 BUDGET 

 

1. Budget meetings with program managers – Jan – Feb 2017 
 

2. First draft of budget will be put together between 3/1 - 3/7 by Kathi. 
 

3. Budget Team (Teri & Kathi) will meet as needed to balance budget. 
 

4. Complete second draft done 3/13 - 3/14 
 

5. Send draft budget request amounts to Counties – 3/20 
 

6. 1st notice of Budget Committee Meeting to paper by Mon. ____ for publication Thurs. ____  

(17 days prior to budget committee meeting) 
 

7. 2nd notice of Budget Committee Meeting to paper by Mon. ____ for publication Thurs. ____ 

(10 days prior to budget committee meeting) 
 

8. Complete  final Proposed Budget Document (week prior to Budget Distribution) 
 

9. Compile Budget Document for distribution (week prior to Budget Distribution) 
 

10.  Executive Committee reviews and makes recommendations to budget – 4/11 
 

11. Budget Document to be distributed to Budget Committee week of ________. 
 

12. Budget Committee Session - ________ 
Receive Budget Message 
Review Proposed Budget 
Approve Budget 

 
13. Legal Notice of Budget Hearing to paper by 5/22 for publication 5/25. 

(18 days prior to Budget Hearing) 
 

14. Hold Budget Hearing (Governing Body) and Adopt Budget at June 13 board meeting. 
 
 



Check Date Check 
Number

Vendor Name Amount

1/10/2017 327 IRS $10,484.41 
1/10/2017 328 ASIFLEX $445.00 
1/10/2017 329 P E R S $9,234.24 
1/10/2017 330 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF REVENUE $2,400.92 
1/25/2017 331 IRS $10,656.07 
1/25/2017 332 ASIFLEX $445.00 

Reserved in Que 333 P E R S $9,369.35 
1/25/2017 334 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF REVENUE $2,463.38 
1/4/2017 11643 BEERY ELSNER & HAMMOND LLP $167.00 
1/4/2017 11644 CIS TRUST $28,830.51 
1/4/2017 11645 GORGE UROLOGY $150.00 
1/4/2017 11646 MELADY, DILLON $20.00 
1/4/2017 11647 OPTIMIST PRINTERS $50.00 
1/4/2017 11648 OR GOV'T ETHICS COMMISSION $396.10 
1/4/2017 11649 QWIK CHANGE LUBE CENTER INC. $44.50 
1/4/2017 11650 SATCOM GLOBAL INC. $57.82 
1/4/2017 11651 SMITH MEDICAL PARTNERS LLC $418.32 
1/4/2017 11652 STAEHNKE, DAVID $75.06 
1/4/2017 11653 STAPLES ADVANTAGE $214.59 
1/4/2017 11654 WASCO COUNTY $280.77 
1/12/2017 11655 DEVIN OIL CO INC. $60.68 
1/12/2017 11656 H2OREGON BOTTLED WATER INC. $118.00 
1/12/2017 11657 HENRY SCHEIN $1,557.37 
1/12/2017 11658 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF ENVIRONMENTAL 

QUA
$600.00 

1/12/2017 11659 RAGE GRAPHIX & DESIGN INC. $111.00 
1/12/2017 11660 RICOH USA INC. $152.58 
1/12/2017 11661 SAIF CORPORATION $567.40 
1/12/2017 11662 SMITH MEDICAL PARTNERS LLC $36.00 
1/12/2017 11663 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. $850.00 
1/12/2017 11664 U.S. CELLULAR $311.32 
1/12/2017 11665 US BANK $770.79 
1/12/2017 11666 WASCO COUNTY $333.05 
1/13/2017 11667 CA STATE DISPURSEMENT UNIT $231.50 
1/13/2017 11668 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION $1,125.00 
1/25/2017 11669 AHLERS & ASSOCIATES $860.00 
1/25/2017 11670 BEERY ELSNER & HAMMOND LLP $157.50 
1/25/2017 11671 HENRY SCHEIN $753.85 
1/25/2017 11672 MID-COLUMBIA MEDICAL CENTER $157.50 
1/25/2017 11673 NELSON TIRE FACTORY DBA, GILL'S POINT S $58.80 

1/25/2017 11674 OPTIMIST PRINTERS $8.50 
1/25/2017 11675 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF HUMAN SERVICES $20.00 

1/25/2017 11676 SHRED-IT USA $90.00 
1/25/2017 11677 STAPLES ADVANTAGE $132.19 
1/25/2017 11678 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. $850.00 

NCPHD
Accounts Payable Checks

Issued - January 2017

PAYROLL A/P (EFT)

PAYROLL A/P  



1/25/2017 11679 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. $4,764.26 
1/27/2017 11680 CA STATE DISPURSEMENT UNIT $231.50 
1/27/2017 11681 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION $1,125.00 

TOTAL: $92,236.83 

NCPHD Board of Health authorizes check numbers 11643 - 11681 and payroll EFT numbers 
327 - 334 totalling $92,236.83.

Signed By:____________________________________________ Date:____________
          Commissioner Scott Hege

PAYROLL A/P  













Karen Joplin

CGHC Board Chair

1/13/17



1/13/17

























Karen Joplin
CGHC Board Chair

1/13/2017





   

NORTH CENTRAL PUBLIC HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

“Caring For Our Communities” 
 

 

 
Directors Report for the Board of Health:   February 14, 2017 

 
 
Community Engagement:   
Work continues with various groups connected to the CCO’s and EL Hub around 
system development and coordination.   
 
NCPHD staff are working with community partners on the possibility of  The Dalles 
becoming a ‘Blue Zones’ community.  NCPHD Staff have been a resource to the 
community partner team to provide information and data to the business community and 
elected officials.  Staff presented at two sessions held in The Dalles to answer 
questions about the community funding request.  Dr. McDonell attended the Wasco 
County Commission meeting where Commissioner Kramer requested year 1 funding for 
the project.  Staff will attend a City Council Meeting in The Dalles February 13th to be 
available to answer questions. 
 
Communicable Disease and Immunization: 
Letters were sent to the parents or guardians of 174 students in Gilliam, Sherman and 
Wasco Counties notifying them that their child will be excluded from school or daycare 
on February 22, 2017 if their immunizations are not up to date.  We have been working 
with our partners in primary care to make sure they are aware of the school exclusion 
calendar and the need for immunizations.   
 
Other activities:  
Dr. McDonell and I have attended a meeting of key stakeholders to address suicide 
post-prevention in The Dalles and surrounding communities.  This group is led by Barb 
Seatter of MCCFL.  Key partners gathered to address immediate needs in the 
community and will continue to meet to address prevention needs. 
 
Jeremy Hawkins, Communicable Disease Investigator, is working on the newest round 
of climate adaptation funding from the CDC.  In our region, drought and its effects is the 
biggest concern.  We were able to secure a complimentary grant from the OHA Drinking 
Water Program to provide domestic well testing.  Jeremy is working with local partners 
to determine the area of greatest need.  We are also working with the City of The Dalles 
water testing lab to find low cost testing options to stretch the grant dollars as far as 
possible.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Teri Thalhofer, RN, BSN 
 
 


	Agenda
	1-10-17 Meeting Minutes (DRAFT)
	Draft Budget Calendar
	Jan 2017 A/P Checks Issued Report
	CGHC Business Associate Agreement
	CGHC Program Services Agreement 
	CGHC Confidentialy Agreement
	Director's Report



